
 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 

THURSDAY, AUGUST 3, 2023, 7:00 P.M. 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP HALL  

10990 CLINTON RD, MANCHESTER, MI 48158 

AGENDA 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ESTABLISH QUORUM / PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE  
 

II. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 
 

III. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES – JUNE 1, 2023 
V. APPROVAL OF SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES – JUNE 21, 2023  

& JULY 24, 2023 
 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approval of Claims Listing for June 1, 2023 through July, 31, 2023 
B. WCWRC Memorandum of Understanding – Sheridan Road Culvert 
C. WCPARC Connecting Communities Resolution 

 
VII. REPORTS & CORRESPONDANCE 

A. Public Safety Report – Written report from WCSO 
B. Zoning Administrator’s Report – Written report from Rodney Nanney 
C. Assessor’s Report 
D. Supervisor’s Report 
E. Clerk’s Report 
F. Treasurer’s Report 
G. Trustees’ Report   
H. Planning Commission Report – Minutes included in Board packet 
I. Farmland Preservation Board Report  

 
VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 
IX. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
 

 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 1-Jun-23  Page 1 of 2 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

1-Jun-23 meeting called to order by Supervisor Fromhart at 7:01 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance at 

Bridgewater Township Hall, 10990 Clinton Road, Manchester, MI. 

Present:5     Trustee Faust; Trustee Fromhart; Trustee McQueer; Trustee Ahrens, Trustee Oliver. 

Absent:0   

Citizen attendance:2 

 

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• Citizen spoke about the Farmland Preservation event last month. 

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• Motion to approve the previous meeting minutes as presented – Mr. Faust; support – Ms. Ahrens;  

vote – unanimous. 

 

IV. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 

• Motion to approve the agenda as amended, adding item F - ORV ordinance. – Mr. Oliver; support –Ms. 

McQueer; vote – unanimous. 

 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

    A.   2023Local Road Projects Agreement. 

• Motion to approve WCRC 2023 road projects proposal – Ms. McQueer; support – Mr. Oliver. vote – 

unanimous 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Claims Listing 

• Motion to approve disbursements of $42,810.85 for general operations and $7,889.52 for sewer 

operations; total expenditure of $50,700.37 for the month of May – Mr. Oliver;  

support – Mr. Faust; vote – unanimous. 

B. Resolution in Opposition to House Bills 4526, 4527, & 4528 

• Motion to approve Resolution in Opposition to House Bills 4526, 4527, & 4528– Ms. McQueer; 

 support –Mr. Oliver; vote – unanimous 

 

C. Request for Escrow Refund – Melinda Appold 

The Board did a review of the audit request. Mr. Nanney was present for the review and answered the 

Trustees’ questions. 

 

D. Gift of Property Follow-Up Discussion 

• Motion to rescind the motion of last month accepting the gift of land., – Ms. Fromhart; support – Ms. 

Ahrens vote – unanimous. 

 

E.  Clinton Assembly of God Church for Sale Discussion 

• In depth discussion from all Trustees regarding making a purchase offer to purchase the church at 13300 

Clinton Rd. for a larger Township hall - Motion to have Supervisor Fromhart contact Fred Lucas to 

make a purchase contract for $150,000 cash with an earnest cash deposit of $1,000.00 to purchase the 

church at 13300 Clinton Rd., Clinton Michigan. The contract is to include all possible contingencies to 

include a complete building, elevator and County septic and water inspection., – Ms. McQueer; support 

– Ms. Ahrens vote – unanimous. 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 1-Jun-23  Page 2 of 2 

F. ORV Ordinance 

• Motion to accept the ORV ordinance as amended., – Mr. Oliver; support – Ms. Ahrens vote – unanimous. 

 

VII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Public Safety Report 

• A written report from the sheriff is included in the board packet. 

 

B. Supervisor’s Report 

 

• Spoke about sewer plant issues, working on problem of foaming. 

• Motion to purchase for the bathroom a new sink, faucet, cabinet, door handle and installation cost not to 

exceed $1,000.00. Mr. Oliver: second Ms. Ahrens – vote unanimous. 

• Petal across American will be using our parking lot on June 22, 2023 for a pit stop. 

 

C. Assessor’s Report 

• No Report. 

 

D. Clerk’s Report 

• Clean up day. 

• Reimbursement for the County for May 2 election was received. 

 

E. Treasurer’s Report  

• Preparing July 1st tax billing.  

• Tax bills will mail July1,2022. 

• Audit started today with Clerk and auditor Rana. 

 

F. Trustees’ Report 

• Trustee Faust 

• Motion to purchase 4 new grinder pumps. Ms. McQueer: second Mr. Oliver – vote unanimous. 

• Trustee Oliver 

o No Report 

 

G. Zoning Administrator’s Report 

• A written report from Mr. Nanney is included in the board packet. 

 

H. Planning Commission 

• A written report is included in the board packet. 

 

I. Farmland Preservation Board Report 

• There was no meeting in May.  

 

VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• None 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

• Ms. Fromhart adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m. 

 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 4-May-23  Page 1 of 2 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

4-May-23 meeting called to order by Supervisor Fromhart at 7:07 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

at Bridgewater Township Hall, 10990 Clinton Road, Manchester, MI. 

Present: Trustee Faust; Trustee Fromhart; Trustee Ahrens Trustee McQueer; Trustee Oliver.  

Absent: N/A 

Citizen attendance: 0 

 

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

• None.  

 

III. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

• Motion to approve the 6-Apr-23 meeting minutes as amended – Ms. Fromhart; support – Ms. Ahrens;  

vote – 4-yes 1-No 

 

IV. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 

      •    Motion to approve the agenda as amended by adding items C – Ms. Fromhart; support – Mr. Faust.  

            vote – unanimous. 

 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. 2023 Local Road Projects Agreement 

• Board discussed the 2023 proposed local road projects agreement. - Motion to accept the following road 

projects for 2023 - Hack Rd. to Neblo Rd for $79,000 and the original Hogan Rd. project with 8-inch 

gravel for $100,000, contingent on the total cost of the 2 projects minus 50%. Ms. Fromhart - second 

Ms. Ahrens. – Ms. Fromhart; support – Mr. Oliver. vote – 4-Yes- 1-No 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Claims Listing 

• Motion to approve disbursements of $20,591.44 for general operations and $8,404.28, for sewer 

operations; total expenditure of $28,995.72 for the month of April – Ms. Fromhart; support – Mr. Faust; 

vote – unanimous. 

 

B. Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment. 

• Motion to appoint Melinda Appold to the Zoning Board of Appeals. – Ms. McQueer; support – Ms. 

Fromhart; vote unanimous. 

C. Gift of Property. 

• Motion to accept a gift to the Township of parcel Q-17-20-200-012 from Pat Ahrens, contingent that all 

taxes are paid. – Ms. Fromhart; support – Ms. Ahrens. vote – unanimous 

 

VII. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Public Safety Report 

• A written report from the sheriff is included in the board packet. 

B. Supervisor’s Report 

• Resolved the Konica Minolta account. 

• Filed insurance claim for the Sewer Plant. 

• Applied for Matching Drain Grants for culverts. 

• Went to Raisin River meeting. 



Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees Minutes 

Meeting Date: 4-May-23  Page 2 of 2 

• County cleanup days are coming up. 

• Asked about getting a bid for a new bathroom sink/cabinet. All agreed. 

• Asked to purchase an 8–10-foot ladder. 

C. Assessor’s Report 

• No report was received from the assessor. 

D. Clerk’s Report 

• The election went well, 7 voters came to vote in person, with 35 Absent voter ballots being returned by 

the end of election day. The proposal passed. 

• Due to proposal 2 many new laws and policies are causing additional hours and confusion to administer 

elections.   

E. Treasurer’s Report  

• ARPA report is filed. 

• Audit will be June 1, 2023. 

F. Trustees’ Report 

• Trustee Faust 

o The last condo is connected to the sewer. 

• Trustee Oliver 

o Inquired about getting an ORV ordinance for the Township.  

G. Zoning Administrator’s Report 

• A written report from Mr. Nanney is included in the board packet. 

H. Planning Commission. 

• See the board packet. 

J.     Farmland Preservation Board Report 

• See the board packet. 

 

VIII. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

None. 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

• Ms. Fromhart adjourned the meeting at 9:15 p.m. 

 









Apr '23 - Mar 24 Budget $ Over Budget

Income
Clean-up Day Grant 1,769 2,500 -731
Clean Up Donation 50 100 -50
4402 · Property tax - operation 4,441 95,000 -90,559
4405 · Property tax - fire millage 2,045 50,000 -47,955
4447 · Tax administration fee 453 38,000 -37,547
4448 · Tax collection fees 2,323 3,800 -1,478
4460 · Township permits 50 500 -450
4465 · Land division fees 400 700 -300
4574 · Revenue sharing 25,840 176,349 -150,509
4665 · Interest Income 323 3,500 -3,177
4672 · Other Income 7 100 -93
4675 · Metro Auth.-restricted to roads 4,787 3,800 987
4700 · Election Reimbursement 801 0 801

Total Income 43,289 374,349 -331,060

Gross Profit 43,289 374,349 -331,060

Expense
5101000 · Township Board

5101703 · Trustee salary 1,698 5,094 -3,396
5101727 · Township supplies & expenses 1,556 1,000 556
5101770 · Conferences & Training 0 1,000 -1,000
5102703 · Designated rep 150 500 -350

Total 5101000 · Township Board 3,404 7,594 -4,190

5171000 · Supervisor
5171703 · Supervisor Salary 6,349 19,048 -12,699
5171727 · Supervisor Expense 0 1,000 -1,000
5209000 · Assessor

5209705 · Board of Review expenses 0 1,500 -1,500
5209805 · Assessor Wages 7,567 22,800 -15,233
5209810 · Assessor Expense 1,267 2,800 -1,533

Total 5209000 · Assessor 8,834 27,100 -18,266

Total 5171000 · Supervisor 15,183 47,148 -31,965

5173000 · Other General Government
5173715 · Social Security 1,898 6,000 -4,102
5173801 · Attorney & Consulting Expenses 960 2,000 -1,040
5173802 · Audit fees 0 5,000 -5,000
5173811 · Membership fees & dues 2,062 2,500 -438
5173890 · Newsletter (non-recyc) 0 1,000 -1,000
5173895 · Website Administrator 527 1,000 -473
5173912 · Insurance & Bonds -688 8,000 -8,688
5173955 · Miscellaneous 1,465 1,000 465

Total 5173000 · Other General Government 6,224 26,500 -20,276

5215700 · Clerk
5173900 · Printing & publishing 103 500 -397
5174810 · Deputy Clerk 255 1,600 -1,345
5191727 · Election expense 654 2,000 -1,346
5215703 · Clerk salary 6,596 19,788 -13,192
5215727 · Clerk supplies & expense 973 3,500 -2,527

Total 5215700 · Clerk 8,581 27,388 -18,807

5253700 · Treasurer
5253701 · Tax Collection Expense 1,588 3,000 -1,412
5253703 · Treasurer salary 7,166 21,497 -14,331
5253704 · Deputy Treasurer Wages 120 1,600 -1,480
5253727 · Treasurer supplies & expenses 654 3,000 -2,346

Total 5253700 · Treasurer 9,528 29,097 -19,569

Bridgewater Township
Jul 29, 2023 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 2023 through March 2024

Page 1



Apr '23 - Mar 24 Budget $ Over Budget

5265000 · Building & Grounds
5265728 · Maintenance & Utilities 2,428 10,000 -7,572
5265925 · Cemetery care 1,412 2,800 -1,388
5265980 · Building improvement & equipmen 5,223 5,000 223

Total 5265000 · Building & Grounds 9,064 17,800 -8,736

5301800 · Public Safety
5339727 · Fire protection billing expense 65,178 80,000 -14,822

Total 5301800 · Public Safety 65,178 80,000 -14,822

5400700 · Planning & zoning
5400701 · Planning

5400727 · Planning comm. wage & expense 1,425 7,000 -5,575
5400803 · Planning consultant - on-going 2,104 7,000 -4,896
5411810 · Conferences & Training 100 1,000 -900

Total 5400701 · Planning 3,629 15,000 -11,371

5410726 · Zoning
5410704 · Land Division Processing Fees 550 1,800 -1,250
5410727 · Zoning ad.wage & expense 2,480 7,500 -5,020
5411727 · Zon Bd of Appeals Expense 0 500 -500

Total 5410726 · Zoning 3,030 9,800 -6,770

Total 5400700 · Planning & zoning 6,659 24,800 -18,141

5440000 · Public works
5440846 · Road Improvements 55,554 75,000 -19,446
5440847 · Drains at large 33,832 30,000 3,832
5440849 · Clean-up Day 0 3,500 -3,500
5440852 · Street lighting 1,010 5,000 -3,990

Total 5440000 · Public works 90,395 113,500 -23,105

5500000 · Contingencies 0 522 -522

Total Expense 214,216 374,349 -160,133

Net Income -170,927 0 -170,927

Bridgewater Township
Jul 29, 2023 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 2023 through March 2024

Page 2



Jul 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1002 · General Checking-Key Bank -63,269.24
1010 · General Savings-Key Bank 387,588.10
1016 · Bank of Ann Arbor 5yr 106,418.05
1017 · Old National 5 yr 118,737.71

Total Checking/Savings 549,474.62

Accounts Receivable
1200 · Accounts Receivable 26,627.00

Total Accounts Receivable 26,627.00

Other Current Assets
Prepaid Insurance 7,147.00
1081 · Due from Sewer Operations 373.68
1201 · Accounts Receivable 2 1,590.00

Total Other Current Assets 9,110.68

Total Current Assets 585,212.30

Fixed Assets
1600 · Buildings 98,329.35
1610 · Equipment 28,244.21
1620 · Land 70,863.09
1630 · Siding & Windows 17,049.00
1640 · Township Hall Improvements 54,079.30
1650 · Accumulated Depreciation -112,272.85

Total Fixed Assets 156,292.10

TOTAL ASSETS 741,504.40

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · Accounts Payable -534.11

Total Accounts Payable -534.11

Other Current Liabilities
2202 · Accounts Payable. -12,980.00
2217 · Escrow Deposits Payable

2220 · Due to SMR-Elliott parcel 2,500.00
2233 · Due to SMR-Crego/Peltcs 2,500.00
2252 · Due Metro General Contractors 1,000.00
2253-01 · Due to Bridgewater Commons 485.00
2255 · Barbu Escrow 4,926.25
2970 · Tillman Escrow 65.00

Total 2217 · Escrow Deposits Payable 11,476.25

Total Other Current Liabilities -1,503.75

Total Current Liabilities -2,037.86

Long Term Liabilities
2900 · Deferred revenue-ARPA 181,543.75

Total Long Term Liabilities 181,543.75

Total Liabilities 179,505.89

Bridgewater Township General Fund
Jul 29, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2023

Page 1



Jul 31, 23

Equity
3900 · Fund Balance 576,633.76
3940 · Invested in Capital Assets, Net 156,292.10
Net Income -170,927.35

Total Equity 561,998.51

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 741,504.40

Bridgewater Township General Fund
Jul 29, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2023

Page 2







Apr 1 - Jul 29, 23 Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Interest Income Master Account
Interest Income Checking 162.35 0.00

Total Interest Income Master Account 162.35 0.00

Operation Maintenance Income 33,210.00 0.00

Total Income 33,372.35 0.00

Gross Profit 33,372.35 0.00

Expense
Bank Service Charges 110.00 0.00
Collection System

Billing
Billing Clerk 0.00 -100.00

Total Billing 0.00 -100.00

Grinder Pump repairs 7,199.38 0.00
Miss Dig Locator Service 26.45 0.00

Total Collection System 7,225.83 -100.00

Treatment Plant
Building & Grounds Maintenance 480.00 0.00
Chemicals 3,620.65 0.00
Electricity 6,964.63 0.00
Equipment Repairs 5,163.50 0.00
Plant Operator 9,555.78 0.00
Supplies 88.45 0.00

Total Treatment Plant 25,873.01 0.00

Total Expense 33,208.84 -100.00

Net Ordinary Income 163.51 100.00

Net Income 163.51 100.00

Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation
Jul 29, 23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis April 1 through July 29, 2023

Page 1



Jul 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Key-Sewer O/M

Capital Improvements Reserve 42,000.00
Key-Sewer O/M - Other -19,523.83

Total Key-Sewer O/M 22,476.17

Key Sewer O/M Saving 150,677.14

Total Checking/Savings 173,153.31

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable 12,142.30

Total Accounts Receivable 12,142.30

Other Current Assets
Current Year Tx Roll Receivable 12,980.00

Due From Tax -2,197.90
Inventory Asset 65,756.00
Undeposited Funds 1,730.00

Total Other Current Assets 78,268.10

Total Current Assets 263,563.71

Fixed Assets
Accessory Building 53,320.00
Accumulated Depr - Access Bldg -13,359.63
Equipment 101,752.20
Accumulated Depr - Equipment -86,061.44
Sewer System Plant 1,966,444.05
Accumulated Depr - Sewer System -827,544.78
Land 55,355.06

Total Fixed Assets 1,249,905.46

Other Assets
Special Assessment Receivable 8,331.24

Total Other Assets 8,331.24

TOTAL ASSETS 1,521,800.41

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

*Accounts Payable -2,982.10

Total Accounts Payable -2,982.10

Other Current Liabilities
Due to General Fund -3,336.00

Total Other Current Liabilities -3,336.00

Total Current Liabilities -6,318.10

Total Liabilities -6,318.10

Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation
Jul 29, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2023

Page 1



Jul 31, 23

Equity
Invested in capital assets, net 1,315,661.00
Unrestricted Funds (QB RE acct) 230,132.91
Net Income -17,675.40

Total Equity 1,528,118.51

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,521,800.41

Bridgewater Township Sewer Operation
Jul 29, 2023 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of July 31, 2023

Page 2



 1 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR  
STORMWATER PROGRAM  

BETWEEN 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 

AND 
WASHTENAW COUNTY GOVERNMENT, 705 N. ZEEB ROAD, ANN ARBOR, MI 48103 

 

This document constitutes a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) between 

Bridgewater Township (“Sponsored Party”) and Washtenaw County on behalf of its 

Water Resources Commissioner’s Office (“WCWRC”) starting on August 1, 2023 and 

expiring on December 31, 2026. 

 

Background:  

 

The WCWRC is committed to the protection of surface water and the environment by 

providing stormwater management, flood control, development review, and water quality 

programs. The WCWRC has committed a total of $2,000,000 from years 2023-2025 to 

aid in further implementation. The Stormwater Program’s intent is to further enable 

stormwater projects that provide improved water quality, flood control, or green 

infrastructure while restoring or protecting environmental features in local watersheds 

and providing incentives for undertaking projects in disadvantaged communities. 

Approved construction costs as described in the application are reimbursed at up to 50% 

of qualified total costs and subject to any other applicable limitations. All 

reimbursements must be spent by December 31, 2026. 

 

Specifics: Terms and requirements provided in the attached process apply.  

 

The Sponsored Party agrees to: 

 

1. Provide a minimum of 50% matching funds of the construction costs of the 

project. Indirect costs including but not limited to planning, feasibility, 

hydraulic/hydrologic studies, engineering are not eligible for reimbursement. 

 

2. Comply with all applicable regulatory and permit requirements, including county 

provisions such as ADA or prevailing wage. 

 

3. Acknowledge overhead costs associated with the Sponsored Party’s staff will not 

be considered expenses eligible for reimbursement. 

 

4. Use engineering plans that will be or were prepared by a licensed engineer, 

landscape architect, or similar professional. 

 

5. Competitively bid and award the construction contract to the lowest responsible 

bidder, except in such cases where the Sponsored Party or their grant partner will 



 2 

provide the labor and/or materials for construction themselves. 

 

6. Provide invoices upon completion of the project detailing total construction 

expenses and the amount to be reimbursed by the County, which shall not exceed 

50% of the total qualified costs or any other applicable limitation. 

 

7. Fill out project update reporting form (no more than quarterly) sent by a member 

of the WCWRC staff. 

 

8. Additional reporting metrics specific to the request. 

 

9. Permit the County to highlight the project in education and outreach efforts, 

including, but not limited to social media and the County’s website. 

 

10. Fill out a brief survey at the end of the project to help improve the sponsorship 

process for others. 

 

11. Become a vendor at the County, which will allow for payments to be processed. 

 

12. The Sponsored Party will protect, defend and indemnify Washtenaw County, its 

officers, agents, servants, volunteers and employees from any and all liabilities, 

claims, liens, fines, demands and costs, including legal fees, of whatsoever kind 

and nature which may result in injury or death to any persons, including the 

Sponsored Party’s own employees, and for loss or damage to any property, 

including property owned or in the care, custody or control of Washtenaw County 

in connection with or in any way incident to or arising out of the occupancy, use, 

service, operations, performance, or non-performance of work in connection with 

this contract resulting in whole or in part from negligent acts or omissions of the 

Sponsored Party, any sub-contractor, or any employee, agent or representative of 

the Sponsored Party or any sub-contractor. 

   

13. The Sponsored Party will maintain at its own expense during the term of this 

Contract, the following insurance: 

 

a. Workers' Compensation Insurance with Michigan statutory limits and 

Employers Liability Insurance with a minimum limit of $100,000 each 

accident for any employee. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of 

$1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily injury and property damage. The 

County shall be added as "additional insured" on general liability policy 

with respect to the services provided under this contract. 

 

c. Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, hired and non-owned 

vehicles with Personal Protection Insurance and Property Protection 

Insurance to comply with the provisions of the Michigan No Fault 



 3 

Insurance Law, including residual liability insurance with a minimum 

combined single limit of $1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury and 

property damage.  For transportation services contracts, the County shall 

be added as additional insured on automobile liability policy with respect 

to the services provided under this contract. 

 

Insurance companies, named insured’s, and policy forms may be subject to the 

approval of the Washtenaw County Administrator, if requested by the County 

Administrator.  Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Insurance 

policies shall not contain endorsements or policy conditions which reduce 

coverage provided to Washtenaw County.  Contractor shall be responsible to 

Washtenaw County or insurance companies insuring Washtenaw County for all 

costs resulting from both financially unsound insurance companies selected by 

Contractor and their inadequate insurance coverage.  Contractor shall furnish the 

Washtenaw County Administrator with satisfactory certificates of insurance or a 

certified copy of the policy, if requested by the County Administrator.   

 

Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office agrees to: 

 

1. Upon submission and approval of invoices, reimburse up to 50% of total qualified 

costs. The total amount paid to the Sponsored Party is not to exceed $60,000 

annually. The County reserves the right to refuse to reimburse any expense it 

deems to be an unqualified cost. 

 

By signing this document, Washtenaw County and the Sponsored Party agree to abide by 

the terms and conditions contained in this MOU for the purpose of the Stormwater 

Program. Either party may cancel this MOU for any reason with 30 days written notice to 

the other party.  

 
 
ATTESTED TO:      WASHTENAW COUNTY 
 
By:________________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Lawrence Kestenbaum (DATE)       Gregory Dill   (DATE) 
     County Clerk/Register        County Administrator 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP  
 
By:_______________________________ By:______________________________ 
     Evan Pratt                     Laurie Fromhart (DATE) 
      Department Head  (DATE)        Supervisor  
            
APPROVED AS TO FORM BY 
 
BY:______________________________ 
      Michelle Billard  (DATE) 
      Office of Corporation Counsel 
 
 

  













BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP  
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

A RESOLUTION TO PLEA FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY FUNDING 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF LAND TO BE USED AS TRAILS, PARKS OR 

PRESERVES BE REDIRECTED FROM BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP TO 
OTHER COMMUNITIES 

RESOLUTION 2023-08 
 

WHEREAS, Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees has received the 2023 Connecting 
Communities Initiative Request for Proposals; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees has a duty to represent our constituents 
on the county level in land-use matters; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees has been approached with formal 
proposals for trails to be placed through our township; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Bridgewater Township constituents strongly and vocally opposed the trails with 
“NO TRAILS, NO WAY!” lawn signs erected in many yards throughout the community; and, 
 
WHEREAS, over 400 out of 1600 total Bridgewater Township residents attended a Bridgewater 
Township Board of Trustees meeting and public hearing to oppose trails in Bridgewater 
Township; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Bridgewater Township Board of Trustees has evaluated the County Parks 
statement of intent to continue to seek to purchase river-front properties in Bridgewater 
Township and its adjoining communities; and, 
 
WHEREAS, with the now-clear and publicized Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation 
Commission’s “Connecting Communities Initiative,” the Bridgewater Township Board of 
Trustees views this Resolution both timely and consistent with the views of the people we 
represent. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, WE RESOLVE, as representatives of our constituents, to strongly oppose 
any purchase of land in Bridgewater Township to be used as trails, parks, or preserves and ask 
that Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation Department redirect such funding to other 
communities that welcome these land uses. 
 
WE FURTHER RESOLVE to oppose any further government funding directed toward such 
projects because we believe that it is fiscally irresponsible. 
 
The foregoing resolution offered by Trustee ___________ and supported by Trustee 
____________. 
 



Upon roll-call vote, the following members voted:   
 
 
AYE:           ABSTAIN:   
NAY:           ABSENT:     
 
 
The Supervisor declared the motion passed and Resolution 2023-08 duly adopted. 
 
 
Certification: 
 
I, Michelle McQueer, the undersigned Clerk of the Township of Bridgewater, hereby certify that 
the foregoing resolution is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting 
of the Board of Trustees of the Township of Bridgewater, held on August 3, 2023 the original of 
which is on file in my office, and that notice of such meeting was given, and the meeting was 
conducted, pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267, Michigan Public acts of 1976, as 
amended.  
 
 
____________________________________ 
Michelle McQueer 
Bridgewater Township Clerk 
 



Bridgewater Township 
 

Zoning Administrator Report 

June & July, 2023 

During this period, the following applications were received, reviewed, and acted upon.  Also included 
is a summary of ordinance enforcement and administration activities: 

Zoning Compliance Certificates and Administrative Site Plan Approval:   

1. Zoning Compliance Certificate – Mahrle/Michigan Building Specialties (10320 Lima 
Center Rd.).  Application for zoning approval to construct an addition and deck to the rear of an 
existing, legal nonconforming single-family dwelling located within the minimum required front 
yard setback area.  Approved per revised plans and compliance with Section 16.04B (Dwelling 
as a Nonconforming Structure). 

2. Zoning Compliance Certificate – Mahrle/Michigan Building Specialties (10320 Lima 
Center Rd.).  Application for zoning approval to expand and extend a covered porch on the front 
of an existing, legal nonconforming single-family dwelling located within the minimum required 
front yard setback area.  Not approved, due to the front yard setback encroachment that would 
violate Sections 3.101 (Dimensional Standards) and Section 16.04B (Dwelling as a 
Nonconforming Structure).   

Because the proposed changes to the front porch would expand the existing encroachment into 
the required front yard setback area, a variance would be required for this part of the overall 
project.  The applicant has requested and received an application form and directions for 
preparing and submitting an application for a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

3. Zoning Compliance Certificate – Stein (12905 Wilbur Rd.).  Application for zoning approval 
to construct a new detached accessory structure.  Approved per revised plans. 

4. Zoning Compliance Certificate – Rojas/Revolution Solar (9512 Clinton Rd.).  Application 
for zoning approval to install a private solar array on the roof of an existing dwelling.  Approved. 

5. Zoning Compliance Certificate – Powers (12170 Clinton Rd.).  Application for zoning 
approval to construct a new detached accessory structure (1,024 square-foot pole barn) in the 
front yard.  Approved. 

6. Zoning Compliance Certificate – Hamilton/Snyder Contracting (12725 E. Michigan Ave.).  
Application for zoning approval to construct a new private swimming pool, pool surround, and 
perimeter fencing in the rear yard.  Approved per revised plans. 

Land Divisions: 

7. 10830 & 11040 E. Austin Road, Parcel Q-17-03-300-005.  An updated proposal to divide this 
parcel into two large lots, both with adequate frontage on Austin Road while maintaining the 
existing, legal nonconforming access via a shared driveway that will be located within a new 
easement.  Accepted for zoning compliance as presented. 



Zoning Administrator’s Report  
Bridgewater Township  
June and July 2023  �  Page 2 
 
 
 
Ordinance Enforcement: 

8. Unlawful outdoor sales (food truck) at 8994 Austin Road.  In response to a complaint and 
after verifying that a food truck parked within the Boettner Road right-of-way or front yard 
setback area of the above lot was operating without a temporary use permit and in violation of 
the requirements of Section 5.411 (Outdoor Sales or Display Areas), I notified the landowner of 
the violation and requested that the food truck activity be closed until it could conform to the 
applicable requirements.  

Ordinance Administration and Other Items of Interest: 

9. Telephone calls and emails.  During this period, I received telephone calls/emails regarding 
requests for zoning district information and questions about Zoning Ordinance standards for new 
single-family dwellings, pole barns, commercial greenhouses, animal rescue facilities, standby 
generators on a residential lot, and private solar energy installations.   
I also received one enquiry about zoning requirements for the church building for sale at 13300 
Clinton Road, as well as enquiries about whether the Township has a rental housing licensing and 
inspection ordinance (it does not), whether commercial solar farm development is an option in 
the Township (it is not), and whether a detached accessory dwelling can be added to a residential 
lot (it cannot, but an accessory dwelling could be approved subject to the standards of Section 
5.201A of the Zoning Ordinance if it is located within an existing principal building or built as 
an attached addition to an existing principal dwelling). 

Respectfully submitted, 
Rodney C. Nanney 
Zoning Administrator 



 

 
 
 
 

415 W. Michigan Avenue 734.544.6748 (P) 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197  734.544.6749 (F) 
 

www.ewashtenaw.org/oced facebook.com/washtenawoced 

twitter@WashtenawOCED www.opportunitywashtenaw.org 
Collaborative solutions for a promising future 

 

June 9, 2023 

Supervisor Laurie Fromhart 
10990 Clinton Road  
Manchester, MI  48158 
 
RE: Washtenaw Urban County Cooperative Agreement Extension 

Dear Supervisor Fromhart,  

Urban County members currently have three-year Cooperative Agreements with Washtenaw County 
that apply to Fiscal years 2021,2022, and 2023. As the Urban County Cooperative Agreements have no 
end date, they will be automatically renewed for the following three Fiscal years (2024,2025,2026) 
unless the unit of government notifies the County and the HUD Field Office in writing by July 7, 2023, of 
its intent to terminate the agreement at the end of the current qualification period.  

The automatic extension of the Urban County Cooperative Agreements enables the receipt of federal 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Home Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) 
grant funding for the period July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2027. These programs offer a wide array of services 
for extremely low to low-income residents, older adults, persons with disabilities, and other persons of 
limited resources in the community.   

The County provides fiduciary responsibility, including monitoring and reporting to HUD on the use of 
program income, record keeping and reporting, and executing essential applications, plans, programs 
and projects, which reduce the administrative burden on local communities. The terms and provisions of 
the Urban County Cooperation Agreements are fully authorized under state and local law, providing full 
legal authority for the County to undertake or assist in essential community development and housing 
assistance activities.  

Current participating jurisdictions include: Ann Arbor Township, Augusta Township, Bridgewater 
Township, Dexter Township, Lima Township, Manchester Township, Northfield Township, Pittsfield 
Township, Salem Township, Saline Township, Scio Township, Superior Township, Sylvan Township, 
Webster Township, York Township, Ypsilanti Township, City of Ann Arbor, City of Chelsea, City of Dexter, 
City of Saline, and City of Ypsilanti.  

Please contact me at 734-255-5504 (cell) or cohent@washtenaw.org if you have any questions about 
your community’s continued participation in the Washtenaw Urban County.  

Sincerely, 
 
Tara Cohen  
Housing and Infrastructure Manager 

 

Cc: Michelle McQueer, Township Clerk  
      Jasmyne Townsend, CDBG Management Analyst 
      File 

http://www.ewashtenaw.org/oced
mailto:cohent@washtenaw.org
















 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP  

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
MONDAY, June 19, 2023 

MINUTES (Draft) 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Meeting called to order at 7:15 pm. 

A. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM – Horney, Greenwald, Barbu, 

Oliver present.  Iwanicki, absent.  Quorum obtained.  Zoning Administrator, Nanney 

present. 

B. REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA – Oliver moved to approve the agenda as 

submitted.  Greenwald second.  Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Horney moved to approve the May minutes.  Oliver 

second.  Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION – None. 

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None scheduled. 

IV. OLD BUSINESS - 

A. Shared drive/private road ordinance.  Nanney presented a (Draft) Private Road 

Ordinance.  Section by section discussion produced minor changes, which Nanney will 

amend for approval by the Planning Commission.  Nanney will submit changes to Kris 

Enslaw, Contract Engineer, by the end of the week. The Township Board is not meeting 

in July.  The Draft Ordinance, with changes, will be submitted to the Township Board in 

September, after approval by the Planning Commission.  

B. ADU (Accessory Dwelling Units)/small houses/short term rentals – Only a brief 

discussion ensued because of the lengthy review of the (Draft) Private Road Ordinance.  

The aforementioned discussion included some clarification of terminology.  Detailed 

review will be on the agenda for the next Planning Commission meeting. 

V. NEW BUSINESS - None 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS - 

A. Zoning Administrator’s Report – Nothing to add because discussion of the Private 

Road Ordinance was detailed and substantive.  

B. Trustee’s Report – Board would like the Planning Commission to submit a 

drive/private road ordinance as soon as possible.   

VII. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS –  



 
A. Nanney described impending Michigan Legislature vote to remove local control 

of sand and gravel mining.  Local control is essential for advocacy and representation of 

the residents, while maintaining reasonable operations with mining companies.  Nanney 

urged writing and calling senators and representatives on this issue. 

B. Moved by Oliver, Seconded by Horney, to cancel the July meeting due to 

unforeseen circumstances.  Approved by unanimous voice vote. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT – Moved by Horney, seconded by Oliver.  Meeting adjourned at 9:15  

pm,  by unanimous voice vote. 


	08032023 Bridgewater Twp Board of Trustees Agenda
	060123_minutes_draft
	050423_minutes_approved
	June 23_Monthly_Expense_General1
	July 23_Monthly_Expense_Generalpg1
	July 23_Monthly_Expense_Generalpg2
	July23_Monthly_P&L_General
	July23_Monthly_Balance_General
	June 23_Monthly_Expense_Sewer1
	July 23_Monthly_Expense_Sewer
	July23_Monthly_P&L_Sewer
	July23_Monthly_Balance_Sewer
	MOU bridgewater Sheridan Rd Culvert
	Connecting Communities Initiative
	Connecting Communities Resolution 2023
	2023-06-07 Bridgewater Twp Zoning Report
	Urban County Coop Agreement Extension Letter FY23-24-Bridgewater Twp
	MD-2nd Amendment (as submitted for recording)
	Bridgewater Township PC minutes 6-19-2023 Draft



